

STATE OF NEW MEXICO  
ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

ENTERED

IN THE MATTER OF  
KIRTLAND AIR FORCE BASE  
KAFB NM  
ID NO. NM9570024423

COMPLIANCE ORDER  
HRM-97-01 (CO)

RESPONDENT.

ANSWER TO ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE ORDER AND  
REQUEST FOR ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING

Comes now the Respondent in answer to the Compliance Order issued by the State of New Mexico Environment Department on 28 February 1997, pursuant to Section 74-4-10H of the New Mexico Hazardous Waste Act, requesting a hearing on the matters raised by said Compliance Order.

With regard to the specific findings and paragraphs contained in the Environment Department's Compliance Order, the Respondent answers as follows:

1. Respondent admits to the findings of Paragraphs 1 through 3, Paragraphs 9 through 11, and Paragraphs 13 through 16 of the Compliance Order;
2. Paragraph 4 of the Compliance Order is an incorrect statement of the facts. The Kirtland AFB did not determine that some form of permit was required before clay material could be removed from the skeet range and used as road bedding, but rather decided to cease the practice until determining whether some form of permit was required to accomplish this task;



3. Respondent admits to receiving past Notices of Violation and Compliance Orders issued by the N.M. Environment Department on 28 Oct 93, 14 Feb 95 and 14 Mar 96, as stated in Paragraphs 5 through 7 of this Compliance Order;

4. Respondent denies the assertions of Paragraph 8. The material removed from the skeet range and used for road bedding is not solid waste as defined by State Statutes 74-4-3M or 74-9-3N; ?

5. Respondent has no direct knowledge of the assertions made in Paragraph 12 of the Compliance Order;

6. Respondent agrees in part to the assertions of Paragraph 17 of the Compliance Order, denying that Respondent has violated Section 40 of the Code of Federal Regulation Part 270, and specifically 40 CFR Sect. 270.1(a) which has been incorporated by 20 NMAC 4.1.900;

7. Respondent denies the assertions of Paragraph 18 of the Compliance Order. Respondent has not disposed of solid waste on the road leading from the Sandia Skeet Range to the KAFB C&D landfill. Spent lead shot and clay targets are not solid waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act nor the New Mexico Solid Waste Act nor the New Mexico Hazardous Waste Regulations; ?

8. Respondent denies the assertions of Paragraph 19 of the Compliance Order. Respondent has not engaged in an activity that would constitute a substantial deviation from New Mexico hazardous waste regulations;

9. Respondent denies the validity of the civil fine of \$36,400 as asserted in Paragraph 20 of the Compliance Order. Respondent has not violated State hazardous waste regulations as alleged, and therefore the Environment Department has no legal authority by which to assess a civil penalty. Without admitting to the validity of the facts and conclusion upon which the State bases its authority to impose the civil fine, the Respondent also contends that the amount of

penalties demanded are inappropriate, based upon the nature of the alleged violation and the circumstances upon which the State discovered the facts of this alleged violation.

10. In response to the State's Schedule of Compliance set forth in Paragraph 21 of this Compliance Order, the Respondent denies that it has violated State solid waste disposal regulations and therefore the State Environment Department is without legal authority to direct a course of corrective action with set deadlines for completion. Without admitting to the validity of the facts and conclusion upon which the State bases its authority to direct corrective action, the Respondent also contends that the deadlines set by the Environment Department for the insisted course of remediation are unreasonable and arbitrary;

Respondent reserves the right to present additional facts, circumstances or arguments which constitute the grounds for defense of the assertions made in the State's Compliance Order as such facts, circumstances or arguments become known to the Respondent through discovery or other means.

The Respondent, Kirtland Air Force Base, New Mexico, hereby requests a hearing regarding this Order of Compliance.

Respectfully submitted this 1st day of April 1997.



Gary D. Bills, Colonel, USAF  
Installation Commander  
Kirtland AFB, New Mexico